












 

 

 

TOWN OF MILTON, VERMONT   
 

   Legislative and Fiscal Analysis of Requested Selectboard Actions 
 

Filling Assessor’s Office Staffing Need and Providing Training Through Reappraisal Process 
 

Date: 8/12/2016 
 
Legislative Analysis:  The Town has not filled the staff position vacated by Bob Ware earlier this year. It is 
extremely hard to find qualified individuals for positions in Assessor’s offices. Contributing to this situation 
is the fact that Milton’s pay scale for this position is significantly lower than surrounding communities. In 
discussions concerning options for restructuring the Department and improving its functionality, Assistant 
to the Assessor, Amy Couture has indicated an interest in becoming trained to undertake inspections.  
 
In addition, and as noted in material previously handed out to the Selectboard, it’s Ed Clodfelter’s belief 
that there are some serious inconsistencies in our current appraisal information. Ed’s identified Milton’s 
mobile homes as being often over-valued and overdue on an updated appraisal. Residents living in these 
buildings are often among the least likely to be able to incorporate continual tax increases into their lives 
while also maintaining a reasonable quality of life.  
 
Ed’s proposed hiring a NEMRC employee on a contract basis to undertake the re-appraisal of mobile 
homes, update our files, and provide in-the-field training to Amy as well as in-office oversight on learning 
aspects of the software that the department is transitioning to that intersects with NEMRC.  This is a plan 
that not only addresses the mobile home issues, but also begins to provide us with the opportunity to 
rebuild and establish the groundwork for overlapping competencies within the department. 
 
What the aforementioned plan does not consider is replacing the part-time Assistant Assessor position 
on an ongoing basis.  It would be in our best interest to plan on hiring for this position in the January-
February 2017 timeframe.  This would provide an opportunity for overlap with the NEMRC employee and 
allow an orientation to the mobile home reappraisal process.  The Assistant to the Assessor would have 
achieved some skill development sufficient to manage some additional tasks on a regular basis. The 
integration of a new, regular employee would allow for restructuring and round out the work plan for the 
remainder of FY 2017. 
 
During this same time, Ed is also committed to transitioning from the ProVal system to NEMRC’s CAMA 
system in order to increase functionality and integration with other Town systems. 
 
Fiscal Analysis:  

 Conversion from ProVal to CAMA – will cost $28,000 and can be paid completely by Reappraisal 
Fund monies.  

 The cost of hiring a skilled NEMRC employee is anticipated to be $38,000 or approximately $3,200 
per month for a year. With a start date anticipated for October, the cost would be $28,800, to be 
paid entirely through the Reappraisal Fund. 

 There is $20,124 budgeted for the Assistant Assessor’s part time wages for a full year.  The hourly 
rate of pay will need to be increased in order to attract a viable candidate. These monies should 
set aside until the results of the Employee Recruitment &Retention Task Force’s work is 
concluded.  This will allow the Town to restructure a position for the latter portion of FY 2017 
without adverse financial impacts to the current year’s budget.   

 



 

 

Suggested Action:   

 Staff asks that the Selectboard authorize the use of $56,800 from the Reappraisal Fund* to hire 
a NEMRC consultant for the remainder of FY 2017 in order to undertake a re-appraisal of mobile 
homes in Milton, and provide hands-on training through this process to the Town’s current 
Assistant to the Assessor.   

 

 Regular Training Reports written by the Assistant to the Assessor, and which are currently 
required of all staff who participate in training programs, will be provided to the Selectboard, 
through the Town Manager’s practice of weekly Updates with the first update of each month. 
 

 Monthly, written, progress reports will be provided to the Selectboard by Ed Clodfelter, with in 
person presentations scheduled (at least) for one of the regular meetings in January and March 
on the progress of the re-appraisal.   
 

 A final analysis of the reappraisal’s impacts to residents and on the Grand List will be presented 
to the Selectboard by the Assessor, in consultation with the Finance Director. 

 
The Reappraisal Fund balance will be provided to the Selectboard on Monday evening.  The new Finance 
Director was out of the office Wednesday through Friday and unavailable to verify the current status for 
the preparation of this document.  The FY 2015 audit identifies $350,267 assigned for Reappraisal 
Expenses. 
 
 
Prepared By: Donna Barlow Casey, Town Manager. 



 

 

 

TOWN OF MILTON, VERMONT   
 

   Legislative and Fiscal Analysis of Requested Selectboard Actions 
 

Additional Fees Charged Employees Participating in VMERS C Retirement Plan  
 

Date: 8/12/2016 
 
Legislative Analysis: The Town of Milton has always and continues to require that employees 
participating in the VMERS C retirement plan contribute an extra 1.5% of their gross salary for the first 
three years they participate. The State Treasurer’s Office disallows this type of practice, and has recently 
stated that “under no circumstances may an employer require an employee to contribute more than the 
amount specified by VMERS.”    
 
Having looked at the record of how this practice developed, I have informed the new Finance Director, 
Sarah Macy, that we need to eliminate the deduction of 1.5% from VMERS C Plan participants’ 
paychecks and come into complete compliance with this condition of participation in the VMERS 
retirement system.  I am asking the Selectboard to authorize the reimbursement of monies withheld 
from employee paychecks, plus reasonable interest, for all who are currently participants and those 
who have been participants, even if they are no longer employed by the Town. 
 
Information that follows in this Legislative Analysis identifies: the circumstances of how the VMERS C 
Plan was initiated, inclusive of the origins of the 1.5% deduction; evidence that VMERS informed the 
Town that additional employee contributions were not allowed; documents and videotaped discussion 
demonstrating that the former Town Manager asked the Selectboard to change its formation resolution 
in a manner that would allow the adoption of VMERS C; and, proof that employees admitted to the 
VMERS C Plan have been required to contribute 1.5% of the cost in order to participate. (See referenced 
copies of historical documents - attached - which attest to the actions that have led to these 
“unauthorized” employee deductions.)   
 
In the Fiscal Analysis section of this document, Sarah Macy identifies: the historical participants; total 
dollar amounts withheld per person; and, offer a recommendation on the rate of interest to be applied. 
 

A. Sept. 4, 2012 - Selectboard Meeting Minutes, Item VIII. (3.) – VMERS C Plan for Non-
represented Employees 
Town Manager, Brian Palaia, briefs the Board on a proposal to allow non-represented 
employees to participate in the VMERS C retirement plan.  This is to be an option to the VMERS 
Plan B that non-represented employees were all enrolled in.  Details of the additional 1.5% 
contribution are memorialized in the minutes of this meeting. 

 Attachment supporting the above: Minutes of the Sept. 4, 2012 Selectboard Meeting  

B. Resolution dated 9.4.2012 – Non-represented Employees offered VMERS C  
This signed document clearly contains a paragraph identifying that employees will “make up any 
difference between the VMERS B employer contribution rate and VMERS C employer 
contribution rate for the first three years of enrollment.” 

 Attachment supporting the above: Signed Resolution from 9.4.2012 

 

 



 

2 
 

C. Memorandum dated September 14, 2012 – Sent to Tina Kawecki, Secretary to the VMERS 
Board 

This communication, signed by Town Manager Brian Palaia acknowledges understanding that no 
amount of the employer’s contribution to the VMERS C retirement plan may be deducted from 
the employee’s paycheck. 

Attachment supporting the above: Signed copy of the above noted Memorandum 

D. Sept. 15, 2012 - Selectboard Meeting Minutes, Item VIII. (F.) – VMERS C Plan for Non-
represented Employees  
The minutes of the meeting reflect that the resolution was re-submitted with minor changes in 
language to conform to specifications requested by VMERS.   There is no detailed verbal 
explanation provided to Selectboard members of why the change is being made.  

Attachment supporting the above: Minutes of the Sept. 15, 2012 Selectboard Meeting 

E. Videotape record of the above agenda item discussion.   
http://lcatv.org/node/107904 

On the tape you will see/hear the entire conversation about this agenda item.  What seems 
important is that a Selectboard member asks if this will cost the Town additional money; Brian 
responds by answering “No.” The motion of the Selectboard at the previous meeting on 
September 4th had committed that staff would pay a portion of the employer cost for the first 
three years of participation.  This has changed, by removal of the language requiring a staff 
contribution of 1.5% over the first three years of participation, in the September 15th meeting. 
There should either have been an explanation of where those monies would come from or an 
affirmative answer to the question, as the Town, per VMERS condition should be paying the full 
cost of the employer contribution. 

F. Resolution dated 9.15.2012 – Non-represented Employees offered VMERS C  
The Resolution omits any mention of additional employee payments. 

Attachment supporting the above: Signed Resolution from 9.15.2012 
 

G. Copy of D. Barlow Casey Payroll Deduction Screenshot 
This screenshot shows the setup of the additional 1.5% deduction in the Payroll module.  The 
description of this deduction is “ins/vmers cplan” and the calculation is 1.5% of the employee’s 
gross wages.  These amounts were credited to the Group Health Insurance expense account in 
each employee’s department, reducing the total health insurance expense.  
 
Brian messaged this contribution to participants as going toward their health insurance plans, 
which is likely why the description includes the letters “ins” and the miscellaneous information 
field states “contribution toward healthcare.”  However, the dollar amount of the contribution is 
unrelated to health insurance expenses and directly related to the difference between the 
employer contribution to VMERS B and VMERS C at the time of the switch.  Non-Represented 
staff members who initially chose to switch to the VMERS C plan or who were hired after the 
switch have been required to pay this additional amount.  Since the initial switch all Non-
Represented staff are required to participate in VMERS C or may opt to participate in the VMERS 
Defined Contribution plan within 60 days of their hire date.  The possibility exists that Non-
Represented staff hired after the switch may have opted out of the VMERS C plan as a result of 
this increased contribution, foregoing a benefit that they would have otherwise accepted.    

 
  

http://lcatv.org/node/107904


 

3 
 

Fiscal Analysis:   
 
The total amount of contributions withheld in excess of the amount required by VMERS is $9,886.97 
impacting six employees, both current and former. Excess contributions began July 2013 and have 
continued through the date of this memo.  Using the interest rate the Town earns on its checking 
account (0.20% per year) and the number of days between each excess contribution and the date of this 
memo, total interest due on the funds is $27.91.   
 
Total General Fund Impact: $9,914.88 
 
NAME EXCESS CONTRIBUTION INTEREST TOTAL 

EMPLOYEE 1 $1,308.39 $1.27 $1,309.66 
EMPLOYEE 2 $2,155.11 $8.26 $2,163.37 
EMPLOYEE 3 $1,356.74 $4.11 $1,360.85 
EMPLOYEE 4 $1,931.42 $4.40 $1,935.82 
EMPLOYEE 5 $783.48 $2.43 $785.91 
EMPLOYEE 6 $2,351.83 $7.44 $2,359.27 

TOTAL $9,886.97 $27.91 $9,914.88 
 
Prepared By: Donna Barlow Casey, Town Manager and Sarah Macy, Finance Director. 

























 

 

 

TOWN OF MILTON, VERMONT   
 

   Legislative and Fiscal Analysis of Requested Selectboard Actions 
 

Employee Recruitment and Retention Task Force 
 

Date: 8/12/2016 
 
Legislative Analysis:  Three recommendations for creating Task Forces were made by the Town Manager 
as part of the FY 2017 Budget process.  One of these was to create an Employee Recruitment and 
Retention Task Force. I am asking the Selectboard to take action on this recommendation now, for all of 
the reasons below. 
 

 The Town of Milton experiences turnover at a rate greater than surrounding communities and 
also communities in Vermont of a similar size. 

 Repeatedly, departing employees cite increased wages and “better offers” as the reason for 
leaving.  The conversation around departure often includes a statement about compensation, but 
also about more responsibility, increased opportunity for advancement, return to a former 
employer who values their work. 

 Recent comparisons to positions advertised in other Towns in Chittenden County have 
demonstrated distinct, substantive differences in rates of pay for similar jobs. The Town has 
adjusted it’s pay range in several recent hiring processes in order to attract the level of experience 
and expertise it has sought. 

 Although Milton has historically had a generous benefits package, it is unclear how the current 
offerings compare with other communities with whom we compete for employees. It is also 
unclear whether changing demographics and associated values of different age groups have 
rendered once valued benefits less desirous.   

 Milton’s employee benefits mirror traditional municipal offerings with strict use requirements 
that are no longer reflected in many private sector or progressive organizations. 

 Employee satisfaction wavers by department, by project, and throughout the year.  

 There is little inter-departmental collaboration that occurs within the Town’s structure. And few 
projects that are a shared between departments. 

 Complaints from citizens include concerns about productivity, level of service, and quality. 
  

Employee satisfaction is an often studied topic.  I looked at several recent results and found similarities 
throughout – most pointing to compensation as the #1 motivator.  However, other studies have begun to 
look at what employees value, which speaks to a climate of satisfaction.  I believe this broader look at 
employee satisfaction fits well with the culture here in Milton - the small town values that people seek.   
 

The following results were reported in FORBES magazine from December 2014.  Results are from a 

Boston Consulting Group Study that interviewed over 200,000 people from around the world, and 

represents one of the most comprehensive studies of its type, which looks at job happiness as the 

primary motivator in longevity.  While pay is among the top 10 factors, it is surrounded by other value 

based qualities that contribute to retention.  The author states, “This reaffirms what I consistently see in 

organizations that I speak with. You can’t pay someone a lot of money, treat them poorly, and expect 

them to do their jobs well just because they get a nice paycheck.”   
 



 

 

The top 10 factors: 

1. Appreciation for your work 

2. Good relationships with colleagues 

3. Good work-life balance 

4. Good relationships with superiors 

5. Company’s financial stability 

6. Learning and career development 

7. Job security 

8. Attractive fixed salary 

9. Interesting job content 

10. Company values 

BCG grouped their 26 factors (in their full report) in several categories and the top ones were “work 

environment” or “job content and opportunities.” Perhaps what is more interesting is that contrary to 

some of the other studies which show compensation as the #1 factor for happiness, this report puts 

salary at #8. 
 
WORK TO BE UNDERTAKEN: 
In addition to gathering data on wages and benefits by position, the staff team will be charged with 
undertaking interviews and gathering information through a variety of direct and indirect means on work 
environment, policies, practices and benefits.   
 
Bi-monthly updates will be provided to the Selectboard by members of the Task Force. This will present 
an opportunity for the Task Force to hear thoughts and ideas and incorporate them into the work being 
undertaken. 
 
A final, written document will be prepared, and a Powerpoint presented explaining findings and 
recommendations. 
 
Suggested Action:   

 Staff asks that the Selectboard authorize the establishment of an Employee Recruitment and 
Retention Task Force consisting of one member of each department, two (2) chosen by each of 
the Unions, to be chaired by the Town Manager and supported by Director of Administration.   
 
It is desirable that a Selectboard member be designated to attend meetings on an ad hoc basis. 
 
An invitation will also be extended to the Library to participate in work sessions in order that 
that the Library be knowledgeable about the Town’s process, and be able to generate their own 
assessment, comparison and recommendations of wages/compensation for their staff to 
present to the Library Trustees, if so desired. 

 
Fiscal Analysis: I expected that the report to be produced by this Task Force will not directly impact the 
FY 2018 budget.  Past experience suggests to me that it takes a full year to digest the results and to 
generate a plan to restructure not only some individual’s compensation but to consider work 
environments, revise benefit programs, occasionally restructure positions or departments, and perhaps 
reinvent positions, responsibilities, operational practices and policies. 
 
Prepared By: Donna Barlow Casey, Town Manager. 























 

Selectboard Minutes Page 1 of 3        August 1, 2016 
 

Milton Selectboard Meeting Minutes 1 
August 01, 2016 at 6PM 2 

Municipal Building Community Room 3 
       4 
Selectboard Members Present:  Kenneth Nolan, Vice Chair; John Bartlett, Clerk; John Palasik, Member; 5 
John Cushing, Member 6 

Selectboard Members Not Present: Darren Adams, Chair 7 

Staff Members Present: Donna Barlow Casey, Town Manager; Dustin Keelty, PW Supervisor; John 8 
Gifford, Town Treasurer; Donald Turner Jr., Fire Chief; Erik Wells, Director of Administration  9 
 10 
Others Present: Courtney Lamdin; Donald Turner Jr; Val Sicard; Anni Paul; Isaac Wagner; Karen White; 11 
Sarah Martin; Michael Boisjoli; Michael Howard 12 
 13 
I. Call to Order –  Ken Nolan called the meeting to order at 6:00pm 14 
 15 
II. Flag Salute – Ken Nolan led the attendees in a Salute to the Flag.  16 

 17 
III. Agenda Review-  none 18 

 19 
IV. Public Forum-  No one 20 
 21 
V. New Business and Department Items  22 

A. Recognition of Milton Rescue’s 50 Year Anniversary 23 
The Board recognized Rescue for its great service over its 50 years to the community. John 24 
Bartlett read the resolution into the record. Bartlett moved to adopt the resolution as 25 
presented, second by Cushing. Approved Unanimously.  26 
 27 
John Cushing mentioned the National Night Out event the following night where a 28 
ceremony honoring rescue would be held. 29 
 30 

B. Recognition of Michael Boisjoli for July 4th Fireworks Display 31 
Michael thanked the community for being the best in VT. Donald Turner Jr. thanked 32 
Michael for his service. John Bartlett read the resolution and moved to adopt as written. 33 
John Cushing second; Approved Unanimously.  34 
 35 

C. Milton Mobile Home Co-op 36 
Residents expressed their concerns about the co-op. They are looking to have sewer 37 
connected and fix failing systems and old water pipes. In addition there is a ravine on the 38 
property that requires further attention. They are looking for advice from the town and 39 
ways to partner into the future to reach these goals. Low interest loan and/or grant are 40 
being looked into.  41 
 42 

D. FY‘17 Tax Rate 43 
Town Treasurer John Gifford recommended that the tax rate be set at .5188 which is the 44 
same as FY’16. There was a discussion about the TIF transfer and process that was used to 45 
arrive at the final calculation. Gifford suggested amending the budget by $47,000 to make 46 
everything even out for revenue to be raised by taxes. After discussion, the budget was 47 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 2 of 3        August 1, 2016 
 

kept the same and will be revisited mid-year. Cushing moved to set the FY ’17 tax rate at 48 
.5188, and if there was a shortfall to amend the budget and not use fund balance, second 49 
by Palasik. Approved Unanimously. 50 
 51 

E. Award 2017 Engineering and Paving Services Contract 52 
Barlow Casey stated that a request for qualification (RFQ) was sought for engineering firms 53 
to provide the Town with services, with 2016 paving the top priority. A number of firms 54 
inquired regarding the RFQ, but in part due to the short turn around the sole proposal 55 
received was from Donald L. Hamlin Consulting Engineers. A review committee that 56 
included Erik Wells, Dustin Keelty and herself reviewed the proposal and recommend that a 57 
contract be awarded to Hamlin. The firm has provided construction inspection services for 58 
the McMullen Road Sidewalk Project and Wells and Keelty have been pleased with their 59 
work. Discussion was held that the Board was concerned in locking into a long term with a 60 
firm and not being able to change because of a term contract. Agreed this would be a one 61 
year arrangement and this would not be the sole engineering firm the Town could choose 62 
to contract with. Bartlett moved to authorize the Town Manager to negotiate the terms and 63 
scope of a contract with Donald L. Hamlin Consulting Engineers for FY ’17 at a cost not to 64 
exceed $50,000. Second by Cushing. Approved Unanimously. 65 
 66 

F. Purchase exceeding $10,000: Patch paving, salt and salt 67 
Keelty addressed the Board regarding these three purchases that exceeded $10,000. He 68 
requested waiving the formal bid for paving because contractors had already looked at the 69 
different areas in need and given their quotes to him. He recommends using Over the Top 70 
which had the lowest tonnage rate. This would be spot paving for culvert replacements and 71 
other excavation work. Discussion was brought up about how a better tracking system 72 
could be developed on how much we budgeted for and how much we spent at the end of 73 
the year. Sand was addressed to continue to use Nadeau out of Johnson, and salt using the 74 
State bid with Cargill. Cushing moved to approve the spending requests, second by Bartlett. 75 
Approved Unanimously. 76 
 77 

G. Merger or Consolidation of Emergency Services Dispatch 78 
Barlow Casey discussed the RPC is doing a study and looking into consolidating the 79 
emergency dispatch services for certain towns. The study costs a total of 45K and they are 80 
looking for each town to contribute 5K. The Board voiced concern of what the 5K would 81 
give the Town in return and if that would give the Town a voice and/or vote in the 82 
discussion later on. Barlow Casey is going to obtain more information about this and put it 83 
on the agenda at future meeting. 84 
 85 

V. Manager’s Report 86 
Barlow Casey stated Josh Bergeron has left the town for a new job opportunity and now the 87 
department will be short handed a person. The Recreation department found out that CSWD is 88 
granting them the full amount as discussed in the last meeting for recycling containers. Barlow 89 
Casey asked to move the first meeting in September to September 7th because of Labor Day and 90 
conflicting meetings and events in town, the board had no problem. The board brought up the 91 
lease on the town electric vehicle and what we will do once the lease has ended.  92 
 93 

VI. Potential and/or Future Agenda Items 94 
Sarah Macey the finance director will be joining in the next meeting to discuss past issues and 95 
projects for the future. 96 



 

Selectboard Minutes Page 3 of 3        August 1, 2016 
 

 97 
VII. Warrant/Report #3 98 

Bartlett reviewed warrant report #3, he listed a few items in random order: 99 
 100 
- McCrae Auto Service $2,638.43 - repairs to MFD 1996 GMC3500 and 2009 Chevy 2500HD to 101 
pass inspection (brakes, axle U-bolts, ball joints, etc.) 102 
- NEMRC, $6,600 103 
 GREATER THAN $10,000 104 
 - Chittenden Unit for Special Investigation (CUSI), $15,987 - Milton share of annual fee for sex 105 
crimes unit based on percentage of population - recurring annual fee, not from CIP 106 
- Round Hill Fence, $29,945 - new security system for municipal building, MFD, MRD doors, etc. - 107 
approved @ 5/18/16 SLB meeting) 108 
 109 
Bartlett recommended approval of these orders in the amount of $150,317.81, second by 110 
Cushing. Approved Unanimously. 111 

VIII. Supplemental Warrant 112 
 113 
Bartlett moved to approve the Supplemental Warrant, in the amount of $70,588.10 - for 114 
principal and interest payment to People's United Bank to payoff TIF Bond Anticipation Note 115 
that expires 8/15/16. Second by Cushing. Approved Unanimously. 116 

IX. Meeting Minutes of July 11 and 18 117 
John Cushing moved to approve the minutes, Bartlett second. Approved Unanimously. 118 

 119 
X. Executive Session per V.S.A. Title 1 Section 313 120 

Bartlett moved to find premature public knowledge about Human Resources would cause the 121 
Town or person to suffer a substantial disadvantage.   Second by Cushing. Approved 122 
unanimously.  123 
 124 
Bartlett moved to enter into Executive Session to discuss Human Resources under the 125 
provisions of V.S.A. Title 1 Section 313 and include Barlow Casey. Second by Cushing.  Approved 126 
unanimously. 127 

 128 
 Entered Executive Session at 8:17 PM 129 
 130 
 There was no action as a result of executive session 131 

 132 
XI. Adjournment  133 

Bartlett moved to adjourn, second by Cushing. Approved unanimously. 134 
 135 

Respectfully Submitted, 136 
___________________________________ Date: _______________________ 137 
John Bartlett, Selectboard Clerk 138 
 139 
Filed with Milton Town Clerk’s Office on this __________ day of __________, _____ 140 
 141 
 ATTEST: ____________________________________ Milton Town Clerk                          142 


	Signed Agenda 8.15.16
	Entertainment Permit Block Party
	Legislative Fiscal Analysis Assessors Office Staffing Proposal
	VMERS C Final for Packet
	Legislative Fiscal Analysis VMERSC Issue 2016
	SLB Signed Meeting Minutes 08.04.12
	Attachment B_VMERS C 
	Attachment C_VMERS C
	Attachment D_VMERS C
	Attachment F_VMERS C
	Attachment G_VMERS C

	Analysis Employee Recruitment and Retention Task Force
	Warrant 4
	SB Meeting Min August 1 2016 (2)

